#### South Australia

## **Police Superannuation Regulations 2017**

under the Police Superannuation Act 1990

#### **Contents**

Dort	1	-Pre	lim	inor	. 7
Part	1-	-Prei	ШП	mar	٧

- 1 Short title
- 2 Commencement
- 3 Interpretation

#### Part 2—Commutation

- 4 Interpretation of Part
- 5 Right to apply for commutation
- 6 Right of non-member spouse or legal representative to apply for commutation
- 7 Commutation factors
- 8 Restriction on commutation
- 9 Adjustment of commutation factors
- 10 Rounding of lump sum

## Part 3—Non-member spouse entitlements

- 11 Procedure for payment of lump sum
- 12 Procedure for payment of pension
- 13 Associate pension

#### Part 4—General

- 14 Salary
- 15 Inclusion of allowance as component of salary
- Salary (contract under section 13 or 16 of *Police Act 1998*)
- 17 Prescribed body
- Fund's share of administrative costs
- 19 Restriction on retirees under 55
- 20 Period of notice
- 21 Notice to Board on invalidity
- 22 Minimum pension payable to eligible children
- 23 Payment in case of pensioner who is incompetent
- 24 Employment of medical practitioner

## Schedule 1—Factors for determination of associate pension

#### Schedule 2—Revocation of *Police Superannuation Regulations* 2002

## Part 1—Preliminary

#### 1—Short title

These regulations may be cited as the *Police Superannuation Regulations 2017*.

#### 2—Commencement

These regulations come into operation on the day on which they are made.

#### 3—Interpretation

In these regulations, unless the contrary intention appears—

Act means the Police Superannuation Act 1990;

**South Australian Police Superannuation Scheme** or **Scheme** means the scheme of superannuation established by the Act and (where the context admits) includes the scheme of superannuation established by a corresponding previous enactment.

#### Part 2—Commutation

#### 4—Interpretation of Part

For the purposes of this Part, a pensioner's annual pension is the pensioner's fortnightly pension multiplied by 313 and divided by 12.

#### 5—Right to apply for commutation

- (1) Subject to this Part—
  - (a) a contributor who is entitled to a retirement pension, or who is in receipt of an
    invalidity pension and has reached the age of 55 years, may apply to the
    Board for commutation of the whole or a part of the pension; and
  - (b) a contributor who is in receipt of a retrenchment pension and has reached the age of 55 years may apply to the Board for commutation of 50% of the pension; and
  - (c) the spouse of a deceased contributor who is entitled to a pension may apply to the Board for commutation of the whole or a part of the pension,

in accordance with this regulation.

- (2) Subject to subregulation (3), an application for commutation of a retirement pension must be made within 3 months after retirement and an application for commutation of an invalidity pension or a retrenchment pension must be made within 3 months after the pensioner reaches the age of 55 years.
- (3) If a contributor is unable to apply for commutation of a pension in accordance with subregulation (2) because the pension is suspended, the contributor may apply for commutation of the pension within 3 months after the pension ceases to be suspended.
- (4) If—
  - (a) part only of an invalidity pension or a retrenchment pension is available to a contributor because the pension is reduced under section 40 of the Act; and

- (b) the contributor has commuted the whole, or a part, of that part of the pension, the contributor may, in accordance with this Part, within 3 months after the contributor reaches the age of 60 years, commute the whole or a part of the part of the pension previously denied to the contributor because of the reduction.
- (5) Subject to subregulation (6), an application for commutation of a pension payable to a spouse must be made within 6 months after the death of the contributor.
- (6) If a spouse of a contributor is unable to apply for commutation of a pension in accordance with subregulation (5) because the pension is suspended, the spouse may apply for commutation of the pension within 3 months after the pension ceases to be suspended.
- (7) If—
  - (a) part only of a pension is available to the spouse of a contributor because the pension is reduced under section 40 of the Act; and
  - (b) the spouse has commuted the whole, or a part, of that part of the pension, the spouse may, within 3 months after the spouse first becomes entitled to the other part of the pension, commute the whole or a part of it in accordance with this Part.
- (8) A contributor who is entitled to an invalidity pension may apply to the Board within 3 months after termination of employment for commutation of 20% or less of the pension.
- (9) An application under subregulation (8) does not prejudice the right of the contributor to apply for a further commutation under subregulation (1) on reaching the age of 55 years.
- (10) The Board may extend the time within which a person may apply for commutation of a pension if, in the Board's opinion, the person was not at fault in failing to apply within the time prescribed by this regulation.
- (11) The Board must commute the pension within 1 month after receiving the application and must pay the lump sum within 14 days after commutation.

# 6—Right of non-member spouse or legal representative to apply for commutation

- (1) For the purposes of section 38S(2)(b) of the Act, non-member spouses who are entitled to have the whole of their share in a superannuation interest commuted to a lump sum must make their election in accordance with that section within 3 months of the operative time.
- (2) For the purposes of section 38S(7) of the Act, if a non-member spouse dies while entitled to, or in receipt of, a pension under that section (other than an associate pension), an election by the non-member spouse's legal representative for the pension to be commuted to a lump sum must be made within 6 months of the non-member spouse's death.

#### 7—Commutation factors

The following tables set out commutation factors:

(a) in the case of a contributor on retirement—

	Age at time of commutation	Amount of lump sum for each dollar of annual pension commuted
55–56		\$11.50-\$11.30
56–57		\$11.30-\$11.10
57–58		\$11.10-\$10.90
58–59		\$10.90–\$10.70
59-60		\$10.70-\$10.50
60–61		\$10.50-\$10.30
61–62		\$10.30-\$10.10
62-63		\$10.10-\$ 9.90
63–64		\$ 9.90–\$ 9.70
64–65		\$ 9.70–\$ 9.50
65–66		\$ 9.50–\$ 9.30
66–67		\$ 9.30–\$ 9.10

(b) in the case of a contributor who is entitled to an invalidity pension or is in receipt of an invalidity pension or retrenchment pension—

	Age at time of commutation	Amount of lump sum for each dollar of annual pension commuted
54 or under		\$11.50
55–56		\$11.50-\$11.30

(c) in the case of a spouse of a deceased contributor—

Age of spouse at time of commutation	Amount of lump sum for each dollar of annual pension commuted		
50 or under	\$11.50		
50–55	\$11.50-\$11.00		
55–60	\$11.00–\$ 9.75		
60–65	\$ 9.75–\$ 8.50		
65–70	\$ 8.50–\$ 7.25		
70–80	\$ 7.25–\$ 4.75		
80–90	\$ 4.75–\$ 2.25		
90–100	\$ 2.25–\$ 0.00		

- (d) in the case of—
  - (i) a non-member spouse who elects under section 38S(2)(b) of the Act to have the non-member spouse's share of a superannuation interest commuted to a lump sum; or

(ii) the legal representative of a deceased non-member spouse who elects under section 38S(7) of the Act to have a pension that the non-member spouse was receiving, or was entitled to receive, commuted to a lump sum—

Age of member spouse at time of commutation	Amount of lump sum for each dollar of annual pension commuted				
less than 55	\$11.50				
55–60	\$11.50-\$10.50				
60–65	\$10.50–\$ 9.50				
65–70	\$ 9.50–\$ 8.20				
70–75	\$ 8.20–\$ 6.70				
75–80	\$ 6.70–\$ 5.30				
80–85	\$ 5.30–\$ 3.90				
85–90	\$ 3.90–\$ 2.80				
90–95	\$ 2.80–\$ 2.10				
95–100	\$ 2.10-\$ 0.00				

#### 8—Restriction on commutation

- (1) The Board must not pay a lump sum to the spouse of a contributor unless it is satisfied that no other spouse of the contributor is entitled to part of the pension commuted by the Board.
- (2) The Board is not liable to any person in respect of a payment made by the Board in accordance with subregulation (1).

#### 9—Adjustment of commutation factors

When determining the amount of the lump sum payable on commutation, the commutation factor must be adjusted proportionately, in accordance with the appropriate table, to the age of the applicant expressed in years and completed months.

#### 10—Rounding of lump sum

When determining the amount of a lump sum payable on commutation the Board may round the amount to the nearest dollar.

## Part 3—Non-member spouse entitlements

#### 11—Procedure for payment of lump sum

- (1) For the purposes of section 38T(3) of the Act, notice given by the Board to a non-member spouse of the non-member spouse's right to make an election in respect of an interest must—
  - (a) be in writing; and
  - (b) advise the non-member spouse of—
    - (i) the option to make an election and the consequences of a failure to do so within 28 days; and

- (ii) the value of the interest; and
- (iii) the basis of any adjustments that have been, or will be, applied to the interest; and
- (c) notify the non-member spouse that the interest cannot be retained in the Scheme.
- (2) If a non-member spouse interest is rolled over to the credit of the non-member spouse in the Southern State Superannuation Fund because an election has not been made, the Board must, within 14 days of the interest being rolled over—
  - (a) advise the non-member spouse that the interest has been rolled over to the Southern State Superannuation Fund; and
  - (b) provide the non-member spouse with a membership identification number, a copy of the most recent annual report prepared in respect of the Southern State Superannuation Fund and any other information that, according to a determination of the Board, may be of assistance to the non-member spouse.

#### 12—Procedure for payment of pension

For the purposes of section 38T(4) of the Act, if the interest of a non-member spouse following service of a splitting instrument is a pension, and the non-member spouse has not directed that the pension be commuted to a lump sum, the following provisions apply:

- (a) the Board must—
  - (i) split the relevant pension within 14 days of receipt of the splitting instrument; and
  - (ii) advise the non-member spouse of the value of the interest and the basis of any adjustments that have been, or will be, applied to the interest;
- (b) the non-member spouse must, before the Board can commence payment of the pension—
  - (i) advise the Board of their name, address, date of birth and bank account details; and
  - (ii) provide any other relevant information at the request of the Board (including documents verifying the non-member spouse's personal details).

#### 13—Associate pension

(1) For the purposes of section 38S(2)(a)(ii) of the Act, notice of an election by a non-member spouse to have the whole of a share of a superannuation interest converted to, and taken as, an associate pension must be given in writing within 3 months of the date on which notification of the non-member spouse's right to make the election is given by the Board.

(2) For the purposes of section 38S(3) of the Act, the amount of an associate pension will be determined by applying the following method:

$$AP = \frac{P(Mx+m)}{Ny+n}$$

Where:

**AP** is the amount of the associate pension payable for the life of the non-member spouse

**P** is the amount of the non-member spouse's share of the pension determined under section 38S(1) of the Act

Mx+m is the conversion factor relating to the member spouse at age x completed years and m completed months and is derived by interpolating between age x and x+1, the factors from the relevant table in Schedule 1 for the relevant type of pension interest and gender of the member spouse

Ny+n is the conversion factor relating to the non-member spouse at age y completed years and n completed months and is derived by interpolating between age y and y+1, the factors from the relevant table in Schedule 1 for the relevant type of pension interest and gender of the non-member spouse.

For a pension payable in connection with a member spouse whose pension commenced before the commencement of the Act, the factors from table 1 of Schedule 1 must be used.

For a pension payable in connection with any other member spouse, the factors from table 2 of Schedule 1 must be used.

#### Part 4—General

#### 14—Salary

- (1) The following allowances are excluded from the definition of *salary* in the Act:
  - (a) allowances for work on public holidays or weekends;
  - (b) the Patrol Tutor Allowance;
  - (c) the Prosecutors Attraction and Retention Payment;
  - (d) the Detectives Attraction and Retention Payment.
- (2) A higher duties allowance is excluded from the definition of salary in the Act for the purpose of calculating contributions.
- (3) If a higher duties allowance has been paid—
  - (a) for a continuous period of less than 12 months—the allowance is excluded from the definition of salary for the purpose of calculating benefits; or
  - (b) for a continuous period of 12 months or more—the allowance will, subject to subregulation (4), be included as a component of salary for the purpose of calculating benefits.

- (4) If the amount of a higher duties allowance that is to be included as a component of salary for the purpose of calculating benefits has changed during the period of 12 months immediately preceding termination of the contributor's employment, the allowance will be included as a component of salary at the lowest level paid during that period.
- (5) In this regulation—

*salary* means salary as defined by the second definition of *salary* in section 4(1) of the Act.

#### 15—Inclusion of allowance as component of salary

(1) Despite any other regulation (and despite any provision to the contrary in the Act), the Flexibility Allowance payable under the *South Australia Police Enterprise*Agreement 2011 will be included as a component of salary for the purposes of determining benefits payable to a contributor who has received the allowance during the contributor's membership of the Scheme in accordance with the following formula:

$$FS = S_1 \left\lceil \frac{CM - X}{CM} \right\rceil + \frac{S_2 \times X}{CM}$$

where—

**FS** is the salary

 $S_I$  is the contributor's actual or attributed salary, excluding the allowance, immediately before the cessation of contributor's employment

 $S_2$  is the contributor's actual or attributed salary, including the allowance, immediately before the cessation of the contributor's employment

CM is the number of contribution months in the contributor's contribution period

*X* is the number of contribution months in that part of the contributor's contribution period during which the contributor was in receipt of the allowance (with any part of a contribution month being taken to be a full contribution month).

- (2) In this regulation
  - *salary* means salary as defined in the second definition of *salary* in section 4(1) of the Act.
- (3) To avoid doubt, this regulation does not apply to the Flexibility Allowance payable under any enterprise agreement entered into subsequent to the *South Australia Police Enterprise Agreement 2011*.

#### 16—Salary (contract under section 13 or 16 of *Police Act 1998*)

The proportion of the total remuneration package specified in a contract under section 13 or 16 of the *Police Act 1998* for the purposes of the first definition of *salary* in section 4(1) of the Act is 86.6%.

#### 17—Prescribed body

For the purposes of section 4(6b)(f) of the Act the Police Association of South Australia is a prescribed body.

#### 18—Fund's share of administrative costs

For the purposes of section 10(7)(b) of the Act the prescribed percentage is 30.

#### 19—Restriction on retirees under 55

The number of contributors who may retire below the age of 55 years in any financial year under section 28(3) of the Act is 50 or such larger number as the Minister approves in respect of a particular year.

#### 20—Period of notice

The period of notice of resignation under section 31(5)(b)(iv) of the Act is 1 month.

#### 21—Notice to Board on invalidity

A notice given to the Board by the Commissioner under section 31(8) of the Act must—

- (a) be accompanied by a certificate in a form approved by the Board from a medical practitioner stating the nature of the invalidity; and
- (b) inform the Board of any inquiries made by the Commissioner or by the Commissioner for Public Sector Employment as to other suitable employment, carrying a salary of at least 80% of the salary applicable to the contributor's present position and available to the contributor in South Australia Police or the Public Service, and the result of those inquiries; and
- (c) inform the Board of the contributor's existing or future entitlement (if any) to weekly payments of workers compensation.

#### 22—Minimum pension payable to eligible children

For the purposes of section 32(3) of the Act, the prescribed amount of the fortnightly pension is—

- (a) \$8 where a benefit is payable or has been paid to a spouse of the contributor; or
- (b) \$12 where no such benefit is or was payable.

#### 23—Payment in case of pensioner who is incompetent

- (1) If the Board is satisfied that a person who is entitled to a pension under the Act is not competent to give the Board directions as to payment of the pension, the Board may—
  - (a) continue to make payments in a manner authorised by the pensioner when competent; or
  - (b) pay the pension into an account in the name of the pensioner with an ADI; or
  - (c) pay the pension to a person who is caring for the pensioner on condition that it is applied for the maintenance and benefit of the pensioner.
- (2) Subregulation (1) is subject to the right of a manager appointed under the *Aged and Infirm Persons' Property Act 1940*, or an administrator appointed under the *Guardianship and Administration Act 1993*, to payment of the pension.

## 24—Employment of medical practitioner

The Board may employ a medical practitioner to advise it on matters relating to the state of health of contributors.

# Schedule 1—Factors for determination of associate pension

Conversion Fa					te Pensio	n
			ation Act 19	90		
	Pre	-1990 Act F	Pensioners			
Type of Interest:-	Age Pe		Invalidity		Spouse F	Pension
Gender:-	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Female
Age						
18	28.665	29.223	25.878	26.047	28.665	29.223
19	28.540	29.128	25.785	25.983	28.540	29.128
20	28.409	29.026	25.686	25.913	28.409	29.026
21	28.271	28.917	25.582	25.838	28.271	28.917
22	28.127	28.800	25.473	25.756	28.127	28.800
23	27.977	28.676	25.357	25.668	27.977	28.676
24	27.819	28.544	25.236	25.574	27.819	28.544
25	27.655	28.405	25.107	25.474	27.655	28.405
26	27.483	28.257	24.972	25.365	27.483	28.257
27	27.302	28.094	24.828	25.245	27.302	28.094
28	27.116	27.925	24.676	25.119	27.116	27.925
29	26.922	27.751	24.517	24.988	26.922	27.751
30	26.722	27.571	24.351	24.851	26.722	27.57
31	26.515	27.385	24.176	24.709	26.515	27.385
32	26.300	27.193	23.994	24.562	26.300	27.193
33	26.078	26.994	23.803	24.408	26.078	26.994
34	25.848	26.790	23.603	24.249	25.848	26.790
35	25.611	26.578	23.396	24.084	25.611	26.578
36	25.366	26.360	23.180	23.913	25.366	26.360
37	25.113	26.135	22.957	23.737	25.113	26.13
38	24.851	25.902	22.725	23.554	24.851	25.902
39	24.581	25.662	22.486	23.365	24.581	25.662
40	24.302	25.414	22.239	23.169	24.302	25.414
41	24.015	25.159	21.983	22.967	24.015	25.159
42	23.718	24.895	21.719	22.758	23.718	24.89
43	23.413	24.624	21.447	22.542	23.413	24.624
44	23.098	24.344	21.165	22.318	23.098	24.344
45	22.774	24.056	20.874	22.086	22.774	24.056
46	22.440	23.760	20.573	21.846	22.440	23.760
47	22.097	23.455	20.262	21.597	22.097	23.45
48	21.745	23.141	19.941	21.339	21.745	23.14
49	21.383	22.818	19.608	21.071	21.383	22.818
50	21.012	22.486	19.264	20.793	21.012	22.486
51	20.631	22.146	18.908	20.505	20.631	22.146
52	20.242	21.796	18.538	20.206	20.242	21.796
53	19.843	21.436	18.155	19.895	19.843	21.436
54	19.435	21.068	17.758	19.573	19.435	21.068
55	19.017	20.689	17.345	19.239	19.017	20.689
56	18.592	20.301	16.917	18.891	18.592	20.301

F.7	10 157	10.002	16 472	10 520	10 157	10.002
57	18.157	19.903	16.473	18.530	18.157	19.903
58	17.714	19.495	16.018	18.156	17.714	19.495
59	17.263	19.077	15.559	17.767	17.263	19.077
60	16.803	18.649	15.098	17.363	16.803	18.649
61	16.336	18.210	14.634	16.943	16.336	18.210
62	15.862	17.760	14.170	16.506	15.862	17.760
63	15.381	17.300	13.705	16.053	15.381	17.300
64	14.894	16.829	13.240	15.592	14.894	16.829
65	14.400	16.348	12.778	15.126	14.400	16.348
66	13.899	15.856	12.318	14.654	13.899	15.856
67	13.398	15.357	11.861	14.177	13.398	15.357
68	12.896	14.851	11.409	13.697	12.896	14.851
69	12.395	14.339	10.961	13.213	12.395	14.339
70	11.895	13.821	10.517	12.726	11.895	13.821
71	11.397	13.298	10.079	12.238	11.397	13.298
72	10.902	12.771	9.646	11.747	10.902	12.771
73	10.410	12.241	9.218	11.256	10.410	12.241
74	9.921	11.709	8.793	10.765	9.921	11.709
75	9.436	11.176	8.374	10.275	9.436	11.176
76	8.958	10.644	7.962	9.789	8.958	10.644
77	8.489	10.116	7.559	9.310	8.489	10.116
78	8.031	9.595	7.168	8.839	8.031	9.595
79	7.586	9.083	6.791	8.379	7.586	9.083
80	7.156	8.582	6.428	7.932	7.156	8.582
81	6.743	8.092	6.082	7.499	6.743	8.092
82	6.347	7.615	5.752	7.077	6.347	7.615
83	5.971	7.150	5.440	6.668	5.971	7.150
84	5.615	6.700	5.146	6.272	5.615	6.700
85	5.279	6.266	4.871	5.891	5.279	6.266
86	4.964	5.850	4.614	5.527	4.964	5.850
87	4.672	5.457	4.377	5.184	4.672	5.457
88	4.404	5.090	4.161	4.864	4.404	5.090
89	4.160	4.750	3.967	4.570	4.160	4.750
90	3.944	4.438	3.796	4.301	3.944	4.438
91	3.757	4.155	3.651	4.057	3.757	4.155
92	3.594	3.899	3.526	3.836	3.594	3.899
93	3.448	3.667	3.411	3.633	3.448	3.667
94	3.310	3.456	3.296	3.444	3.310	3.456
95	3.180	3.265	3.180	3.265	3.180	3.265
96	3.060	3.094	3.060	3.094	3.060	3.094
97	2.933	2.928	2.933	2.928	2.933	2.928
98	2.796	2.763	2.796	2.763	2.796	2.763
99	2.643	2.592	2.643	2.592	2.643	2.592

	Police S	Superannua	ation Act 19	990		
	19	990 Act Per	nsioners			
Type of Interest:-	Age Pe			Pension	Spouse P	
Gender:-	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Femal
Age						
18	23.980	24.334	21.854	21.921	23.980	24.33
19	23.905	24.278	21.800	21.886	23.905	24.27
20	23.827	24.218	21.744	21.847	23.827	24.21
21	23.744	24.153	21.684	21.804	23.744	24.15
22	23.656	24.083	21.620	21.757	23.656	24.08
23	23.564	24.008	21.551	21.706	23.564	24.00
24	23.467	23.928	21.479	21.651	23.467	23.92
25	23.365	23.843	21.401	21.591	23.365	23.84
26	23.257	23.752	21.318	21.526	23.257	23.75
27	23.143	23.652	21.229	21.454	23.143	23.6
28	23.024	23.547	21.134	21.378	23.024	23.54
29	22.900	23.438	21.033	21.297	22.900	23.43
30	22.770	23.325	20.926	21.212	22.770	23.3
31	22.634	23.207	20.812	21.123	22.634	23.20
32	22.493	23.084	20.692	21.030	22.493	23.0
33	22.345	22.956	20.564	20.932	22.345	22.9
34	22.190	22.823	20.430		22.190	22.8
35	22.029	22.684	20.288		22.029	22.6
36	21.862	22.539	20.140	20.609	21.862	22.5
37	21.687	22.389	19.985	20.492	21.687	22.3
38	21.505	22.232	19.822	20.492	21.505	22.2
39	21.315	22.069	19.653	20.243	21.315	22.0
40	21.118		19.653	20.243	21.118	
		21.900				21.9
41	20.913	21.723	19.293	19.972	20.913	21.7
42	20.699	21.540	19.102	19.828	20.699	21.5
43	20.478	21.350	18.903	19.677	20.478	21.3
44	20.247	21.152	18.695	19.520	20.247	21.1
45	20.008	20.947	18.478		20.008	20.9
46	19.760	20.733	18.253		19.760	20.7
47	19.503	20.512	18.017	19.005	19.503	20.5
48	19.237	20.283	17.772	18.818	19.237	20.2
49	18.962	20.046	17.517	18.622	18.962	20.0
50	18.677	19.800	17.250		18.677	19.8
51	18.383	19.546	16.971	18.201	18.383	19.5
52	18.080	19.283	16.679		18.080	19.2
53	17.767	19.010	16.374		17.767	19.0
54	17.445	18.728	16.055		17.445	18.72
55	17.113	18.437	15.720	17.235	17.113	18.43
56	16.772	18.136	15.370	16.965	16.772	18.13

57	16.421	17.825	15.003	16.681	16.421	17.825
58	16.061	17.504	14.625	16.384	16.061	17.504
59	15.692	17.173	14.242	16.073	15.692	17.173
60	15.314	16.830	13.853	15.746	15.314	16.830
61	14.927	16.477	13.461	15.404	14.927	16.477
62	14.531	16.112	13.066	15.046	14.531	16.112
63	14.127	15.736	12.668	14.670	14.127	15.736
64	13.715	15.349	12.269	14.285	13.715	15.349
65	13.294	14.950	11.869	13.893	13.294	14.950
66	12.865	14.539	11.469	13.494	12.865	14.539
67	12.433	14.119	11.070	13.089	12.433	14.119
68	11.998	13.690	10.673	12.678	11.998	13.690
69	11.561	13.254	10.277	12.261	11.561	13.254
70	11.123	12.809	9.885	11.840	11.123	12.809
71	10.684	12.358	9.495	11.414	10.684	12.358
72	10.245	11.900	9.107	10.985	10.245	11.900
73	9.806	11.436	8.722	10.552	9.806	11.436
74	9.368	10.968	8.338	10.116	9.368	10.968
75	8.932	10.496	7.958	9.680	8.932	10.496
76	8.499	10.023	7.582	9.245	8.499	10.023
77	8.072	9.550	7.213	8.813	8.072	9.550
78	7.653	9.081	6.854	8.386	7.653	9.081
79	7.245	8.618	6.505	7.969	7.245	8.618
80	6.849	8.162	6.169	7.561	6.849	8.162
81	6.466	7.715	5.847	7.163	6.466	7.715
82	6.099	7.277	5.539	6.775	6.099	7.277
83	5.748	6.849	5.247	6.396	5.748	6.849
84	5.414	6.431	4.971	6.028	5.414	6.431
85	5.099	6.027	4.712	5.673	5.099	6.027
86	4.803	5.639	4.470	5.332	4.803	5.639
87	4.527	5.270	4.245	5.010	4.527	5.270
88	4.273	4.924	4.040	4.709	4.273	4.924
89	4.042	4.603	3.856	4.431	4.042	4.603
90	3.836	4.308	3.694		3.836	4.308
91	3.658	4.040	3.556	3.946	3.658	4.040
92	3.503	3.796	3.438			3.796
93	3.364	3.576	3.328			
94	3.233	3.374	3.220		3.233	
95	3.109	3.192	3.109		3.109	
96	2.995	3.029	2.995		2.995	3.029
97	2.875	2.870	2.875		2.875	2.870
98	2.744	2.711	2.744		2.744	
99	2.598	2.548	2.598			

# Schedule 2—Revocation of *Police Superannuation* Regulations 2002

The Police Superannuation Regulations 2002 are revoked.

#### Note—

As required by section 10AA(2) of the *Subordinate Legislation Act 1978*, the Minister has certified that, in the Minister's opinion, it is necessary or appropriate that these regulations come into operation as set out in these regulations.

## Made by the Governor's Deputy

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 8 August 2017

No 243 of 2017

T&F17/018CS

14